Cyngor Abertawe Swansea Council

Dinas a Sir Abertawe

Hysbysiad o Gyfarfod

Fe'ch gwahoddir i gyfarfod

Pwyllgor Trawsnewid Gwasanaethau'r Economi ac Isadeiledd

Lleoliad: Cyfarfod Aml-Leoliad - Ystafell Gloucester, Neuadd y Ddinas / MS

Teams

Dyddiad: Dydd Iau, 14 Rhagfyr 2023

Amser: 2.00 pm

Cadeirydd: Y Cynghorydd Philip Downing

Aelodaeth:

Cynghorwyr: C R Doyle, W G Lewis, P Lloyd, N L Matthews, S J Rice, W G Thomas

a/ac T M White

Gwylio ar-lein: http://tiny.cc/El1412

Agenda

Rhif y Dudalen.

- 1 Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb.
- 2 Derbyn datgeliadau o fuddiannau personol a rhagfarnol. www.abertawe.gov.uk/DatgeluCysylltiadau
- 3 Cofnodion: 1 3

Cymeradwyo a llofnodi cofnodion y cyfarfod(ydd) blaenorol fel cofnod cywir.

- 4 Cynllun Cyflawni Economaidd Lleol. 4 34
- 5 Cynllun Gwaith 35

Cyfarfod nesaf: Dydd Iau, 18 Ionawr 2024 am 2.00 pm

Huw Evans

Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd

Dydd Iau, 7 Rhagfyr 2023

Cyswllt: Gwasanaethau Democrataidd - (01792) 636923

Agenda Item 3



City and County of Swansea

Minutes of the Economy & Infrastructure Service Transformation Committee

Multi-Location Meeting - Gloucester Room, Guildhall / MS
Teams

Thursday, 2 November 2023 at 2.00 pm

Present: P Downing (Chair) Presided

Councillor(s)Councillor(s)Councillor(s)C R DoyleW G LewisP LloydS J RiceW G ThomasT M White

Officer(s)

Geoff Bacon Head of Property Services

Phil Holmes Head of Planning & City Regeneration

Kristy Tillman Project Manager

Samantha Woon Democratic Services Officer

Also present

Councillor R Francis-Davies, Cabinet Member for Investment, Regeneration, Events & Tourism

Apologies for Absence

Councillor(s): None.

18 Disclosures of Personal & Prejudicial Interests.

In accordance with the Code of Conduct adopted by the City & County of Swansea, no interests were declared.

19 Minutes.

Resolved that the Minutes of the Economy & Infrastructure Service Transformation Committee held on 21 September, 2023 be approved and signed as a correct record.

20 Swansea Bay Strategy Projects.

The Head of Property Services assisted by the Project Manager, presented an update report on the workshop session held on 23 October, 2023, which explored opportunities for development of Langland Tennis Courts as part of the Swansea Bay Delivery Plan.

The Head of Property Services provided an overview of potential locations, identified under six destinations that were considered during the workshop sessions.

The suggestions captured at the Workshop on 4 July 2023 encompassed:

- Create a Destination Management Plan to complement the destinations.
- Promote All Year Tourism.
- Any development must include a travel plan.
- Make the most of the seafront More Hotels, Commercial opportunity.
- Create an offer to benefit visitors and local communities.
- Create more café and toilet facilities along the coast and somewhere you can just a buy a bucket and spade along the way.
- **Blackpill** Consider commercial opportunities on the promenade, improve the Lido, visitor centre.
- Langland Commercial opportunities to include; serviced apartments, toilets, restaurant/s and boutique hotel/s to benefit and attract visitors.
- St Helen's Slip Bridge Elevated Café on the sand.
- Recreation Ground Park & Ride, multi-level parking, High value apartments.

The suggestions captured at the Workshop on 23 October 2023 encompassed:

- Development opportunities for Langland Bay were explored. It was imperative that a viable development would present opportunities and benefits on balance for the community and public, whilst promoting commercial opportunities.
- Refine the particulars for Langland marketed by B2P on behalf of Swansea Council during 2020.
- Seek opportunities for the community and visitors as an affordable destination as a mixed-use development.
- Non-Residential Stay and dine location Serviced Apartments, Hotel and Restaurant.
- Recreational activities.
- Retail.
- New Public Conveniences and Change Facilities.
- Incorporate Planned and Preventative Maintenance (PPM).
- Beach Hut (daily/weekly hire).
- Low level development.
- Leasehold of 125yrs.
- Seek Capital <u>and</u> Revenue Offers from all interested parties with the intention of maximising financial return.
- Revenue linked to percentage of turnover with stepped increases after a defined period.
- Emphasis on cost savings and quantifying benefit.

The Cabinet Member for Investment, Regeneration, Events & Tourism referred to the other sites within the Swansea Bay area that would benefit from examination.

Minutes of the Economy & Infrastructure Service Transformation Committee (02.11.2023)

Cont'd

The Head of Property Services stated that the sites within the Swansea Bay area would require finance and resources, unless a third party were to come forward. Blackpill, in particular, was a site that may require the engagement of consultants.

A discussion ensued and Members asked questions of the Officers who responded accordingly.

The Chair thanked Officers for their informative report.

Resolved that:

- 1) A revised development brief be drafted in accordance with the findings of recent workshops as described within item 2 of the report.
- 2) The Committee Support sponsoring Cabinet Members for Investment, Regeneration, Events & Tourism and Corporate Services & Performance to develop and agree a viable delivery plan for Langland Bay Tennis Courts as a priority under the Swansea Bay Strategy.

21 Work Plan.

The Chair introduced the 'for information' Economy & Infrastructure STC Work Plan 2023-2024.

The topics for discussion at the following meeting were noted:

• 14 December 2023

Local economic Delivery Plan Strategic Framework

The Chair referred to the Review of the Council's Housing Allocation Policy which had been deferred to a future meeting.

The meeting ended at 2.21 pm

Chair

Agenda Item 4



Report of the Director of Place

Economy and Infrastructure Service Transformation Committee – 14 December 2023

Local Economic Delivery Plan

Purpose: To outline the strategic framework and action plan

for the new Local Economic Delivery Plan for

Swansea.

Policy Framework: South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery

Plan

Consultation: Access to Services, Finance, Legal.

Recommendation(s): It is recommended that the Committee:

1) Note the progress in producing the Local Economic Delivery Plan and provide comments on the document as set out in Appendix 2 of this

report.

Report Author: Clare James

Finance Officer: Ben Smith

Legal Officer: Debbie Smith

Access to Services Officer: Rhian Millar

1. Introduction

1.1 As outlined in the previous Strategic Transformation Committee Reports the new Local Economic Delivery Plan has been produced to set out the economic regeneration priorities and actions for Swansea. The Local Economic Delivery Plan complements the Regional Economic Delivery Plan, covering Carmarthenshire, Neath Port Talbot, Pembrokeshire and Swansea, and will guide the implementation of the Regional Economic Delivery Plan in a local context.

- 1.2 The Local Economic Delivery Plan comprises of a strategic framework which sets out our local missions, strategic aims and objectives through to 2030, and an accompanying action plan.
- 1.3 The Local Economic Delivery Plan has been produced in consultation with the Regeneration Swansea Partnership, which brings together key public, private and third sector organisations involved in economic regeneration in Swansea including Swansea University, University of Wales Trinity Saint David, Gower College Swansea, Coastal Housing, Pobl, Caredig, Swansea Council for Voluntary Services, Department for Work & Pensions, Swansea Bay University Health Board, Swansea Business Improvement District, 4theRegion, Urban Foundry, Indycube, Tramshed Tech, Welsh Government and UK Government. Workshop sessions have been held with Regeneration Swansea partners to develop the strategic framework and the action plan.

2. Local Economic Delivery Plan Strategic Framework

- 2.1 The Regional Economic Delivery Plan was developed in the context of a range of plans and strategies at the local, Welsh and UK level. Important themes that emerged were the need to embed the wellbeing goals and ways of working from the Well-being of Future Generations Act into the Plan, the commitment to decarbonisation and achievement of net zero by 2050, the opportunities and challenges presented by technological and demographic change, and the impacts of the UK's exit from the European Union. These have been taken forward into the Local Economic Delivery Plan and have shaped the local missions, aims and objectives.
- 2.2 As outlined in the policy context section of the Local Economic Delivery Plan it complements and links to:
 - Swansea's Local Wellbeing Plan
 - Swansea Council Climate Change and Nature Strategy 2022-2030
 - Green Infrastructure Strategy Swansea Central Area: Regenerating our City for Wellbeing and Wildlife
 - Joint Local Transport Plan for South West Wales
 - Swansea Council Corporate Plan 2023-28
 - 'Back on Track' Swansea Destination Management Plan 2023-26
 - Swansea Central Area Strategic Framework
- 2.3 The economic context section of the Local Economic Delivery Plan outlines the longer-term economic challenges in Swansea along with the distinctive strengths and opportunities we can capitalise on. The extensive economic analysis undertaken for the preparation of the Regional Economic Delivery Plan and the 2022 Assessment of Local Wellbeing in Swansea have informed this section.
- 2.4 The Regional Economic Delivery Plan sets out three 'Ambitions' which set out the nature of the South West Wales economy that we want to work towards. These ambitions, which have been carried forward into the Local Economic Delivery Plan, are:
 - Resilient and sustainable

- Enterprising and ambitious
- Balanced and inclusive
- 2.5 The Local Economic Delivery Plan has taken the high-level strategic direction from the Regional Economic Delivery Plan and recast this in a local context, to reflect Swansea's unique challenges and opportunities. Local missions have been chosen that largely mirror those in the Regional Economic Delivery plan for consistency and are in line with the economic evidence base for Swansea.
- 2.6 The missions guide the long-term economic policy direction for Swansea. Each mission is broken down into two strategic aims which provide the key areas of focus. Each strategic aim is then further broken down into a series of objectives. The high level summary of the Local Economic Delivery Plan Strategic Framework is outlined in Figure 1 below.

Figure 1: Local Economic Delivery Plan Strategic Framework

Local Mission 1 Local Mission 2 Local Mission 3						
Local Mi	ission 1	Local N	lission 2	Local Mission 3		
		Business an	rong, Resilient d Skills Base	Growing and Promoting Swansea's Strengths and Experience Offer		
Strategic Aim 1	Strategic Aim 2	Strategic Aim 3	Strategic Aim 4	Strategic Aim 5	Strategic Aim 6	
Decarbonising the Business Base	Decarbonising the Wider Economy	Growing productivity and resilience across the economy	Creating a pipeline of skilled and talented people	Creating Connected, Sustainable Places	Strengthening our Distinctiveness	
		Strategic	Objectives			
1.1 Promoting the benefits of climate action to businesses	2.1 Decarbonising the housing stock	3.1 Co-ordinated package of support which engages new and existing businesses	4.1 Inspiring and enabling all people to reach their potential in Swansea	5.1 Building a strong, healthy, and resilient city centre	6.1 Preserving and promoting our heritage	
1.2 Decarbonising local businesses	2.2 Investing in renewable energy	3.2 Ensuring access to fit for purpose sites and premises	4.2 Responding to current and future skills needs	5.2 Creating flourishing. accessible district and local centres	6.2 Celebrating our unique arts and cultural offer	
1.3 Creating local supply chains	2.3 Developing a more circular economy	3.3 Actively promoting Swansea as a place to invest, work, study and do business	4.3 Creating pathways to enter and progress in employment	5.3 Investing sustainably for a more resilient and greener future	6.3 Promoting Swansea as a green, wellbeing city	
1.4 Harnessing low carbon technology/ industries	2.4 Supporting decarbonised transport solutions	3.4 Maximising the positive impact of large and small organisations on local communities and foundational economy	4.4 Growing and retaining highly skilled young people	5.4 Exploiting the benefits of digital infrastructure	6.4 Investing in the 'experience' economy	
	2.5 Enabling green infrastructure	3.5 Fostering innova	ntion and knowledge n local businesses, l Colleges		6.5 Making the economy work for everyone	
	Cross Cutting themes					
Working in Partnership – locally, regionally and nationally Promoting our successes						

3. Action Plan

- 3.1 An action planning workshop was held with Regeneration Swansea in September to inform the development of the action plan. Following this, an action plan has been produced to outline the key actions we will be taking to deliver the strategic aims and objectives in the Local Economic Delivery Plan. Economic circumstances are forever changing so the action plan will be a 'live' working document that will be regularly reviewed and updated by partners. This will enable new actions to come forward where opportunities arise and for actions to be updated as projects progress.
- 3.2 Actions are listed under their primary strategic aim, but the links to all relevant objectives are shown. Specific actions have not been identified for the cross cutting themes as these are instrumental to the way we will deliver all of the actions within the Plan. As the action plan develops it will include timescales, named partners responsible for delivering the action, funding sources and progress. Regeneration Swansea will be responsible for the ongoing review and monitoring of the action plan on a regular basis.

4. Next Steps

4.1 The full Local Economic Delivery Plan strategic framework and action plan is set out in Appendix 2, and the Service Transformation Committee are invited to provide comments on this document. The next stage will be for the Local Economic Delivery Plan to be submitted to Cabinet in the new year for approval.

5. Integrated Assessment Implications

- 5.1 The Council is subject to the Equality Act (Public Sector Equality Duty and the socio-economic duty), the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure, and must in the exercise of their functions, have due regard to the need to:
 - Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Acts.
 - Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.
 - Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.
 - Deliver better outcomes for those people who experience socioeconomic disadvantage
 - Consider opportunities for people to use the Welsh language
 - Treat the Welsh language no less favourably than English.
 - Ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs.
- 5.2 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 mandates that public bodies in Wales must carry out sustainable development. Sustainable development means the process of improving the economic, social,

environmental and cultural well-being of Wales by taking action, in accordance with the sustainable development principle, aimed at achieving the 'well-being goals'.

- 5.3 Our Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) process ensures we have paid due regard to the above. It also takes into account other key issues and priorities, such as poverty and social exclusion, community cohesion, carers, the United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child (UNCRC) and Welsh language.
- 5.4 An Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) screening has been completed and is attached at Appendix A.
- 5.5 The Local Economic Delivery Plan will complement the existing Regional Economic Delivery Plan and aim to create an economy that is resilient and sustainable; enterprising and ambitious; and balance and inclusive. It is expected that it will have a positive impact on people and communities in Swansea by improving economic performance and creating sustainable employment opportunities. In line with the Equality Act 2010 and Public Sector Equality Duty, due regard will be given to the impact on protected groups in the development of the Local Economic Delivery Plan. A full IIA is being undertaken on the Plan.

6. Financial Implications

6.1 There are no immediate and direct implications arising from this report. Any actions stemming from the Local Economic Delivery plan will need to identify the nature, timing and design of any programmes or projects and the resulting costs and funding prior to any investment decisions being made.

7. Legal Implications

7.1 There are no specific legal implications at this stage.

Background Papers:

Regional Economic Delivery Plan

Appendices:

Appendix A: Integrated Impact Assessment Screening Form

Appendix B: Local Economic Delivery Plan Strategic Framework and Action Plan

Please ensure that you refer to the Screening Form Guidance while completing this form.

Which service area and directorate are you from	Which	service	area a	nd dired	ctorate are	vou from
---	-------	---------	--------	----------	-------------	----------

Service Area: Planning & City Regeneration

Directorate: Place

Q1 (a) What are	you screening	for relevance?
-----------------	---------------	----------------

	New and revised policies, practices or procedures
Ħ	Service review, re-organisation or service changes/reductions, which affect the wider community, service
	users and/or staff
	Efficiency or saving proposals
	Setting budget allocations for new financial year and strategic financial planning
	New project proposals affecting staff, communities or accessibility to the built environment, e.g., new
	construction work or adaptations to existing buildings, moving to on-line services, changing location
	Large Scale Public Events
	Local implementation of National Strategy/Plans/Legislation
	Strategic directive and intent, including those developed at Regional Partnership Boards and Public Services
	Board, which impact on a public bodies functions
\boxtimes	Medium to long term plans (for example, corporate plans, development plans, service delivery and
	improvement plans)
	Setting objectives (for example, well-being objectives, equality objectives, Welsh language strategy)
Ш	Major procurement and commissioning decisions
	Decisions that affect the ability (including external partners) to offer Welsh language opportunities and
	services

(b) Please name and fully <u>describe</u> initiative here:

Preparation of a Local Economic Delivery Plan (LEDP) to complement the existing Regional Economic Delivery Plan (REDP). It will guide the implementation of the REDP in a local context and set out the Swansea-specific economic regeneration priorities and actions.

The South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan is the strategic framework for economic regeneration at the regional and local level. It was adopted as Council policy in January 2022. The REDP was produced by the four local authorities in South West Wales in partnership with the Welsh Government. It sets out how we will build on our distinctive strengths and opportunities over the next ten years to develop a more prosperous and resilient South West Wales economy.

Preparation of the REDP included a thorough analysis of the evidence base on the region's economy, labour market and infrastructure to determine its strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats. Extensive consultation was undertaken with stakeholders across the region. Development of the plan also included consideration of national, regional and local policy context including the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act, decarbonisation and the achievement of net zero by 2050, technological and demographic change and Brexit.

Q2	What is the potential impact on the following: the impacts below could be positive
	(+) or negative (-)

Н	ligh Impact	Medium Impact	Low Impact	Needs further investigation
	+ -	+ -	+ -	
Children/young people (0-18)		\square		
Older people (50+)	HH	MH	HH	H
Any other age group	吊吊			H
Future Generations (yet to be born	"		MH	H
Disability	"	HH	Ħ Ħ	H
•	HH		H H	H
Race (including refugees)		片片		H
Asylum seekers	HH	HH		\vdash
Gypsies & travellers	$\sqcup \sqcup$	닏닏		\sqcup
Religion or (non-)belief	$\sqcup \sqcup$		\square	
Sex	$\sqcup \sqcup$		\sqsubseteq	
Sexual Orientation			$\boxtimes \sqcup$	
Gender reassignment			$\boxtimes \square$	
Welsh Language			$\boxtimes \Box$	
Poverty/social exclusion	$\sqcap \sqcap$	$\overline{\boxtimes}\overline{\sqcap}$		
Carers (inc. young carers)	一一一		\square \sqcap	П
Community cohesion	一一二		ĦĦ	Ħ
Marriage & civil partnership	ΗH	HH	ЖH	H
Pregnancy and maternity	HH	HH	ĦH	H

Q3 What involvement has taken place/will you undertake e.g. engagement/consultation/co-productive approaches?

Please provide details below – either of your activities or your reasons for not undertaking involvement

The REDP provides the strategic framework for the preparation of the Local Economic Delivery Plan. The evidence base for developing the Local Economic Delivery Plan will be drawn from the analysis and consultation undertaken for the preparation of the REDP and also the 2022 Assessment of Local Wellbeing in Swansea (which informed the Local Wellbeing Plan) and included widespread local consultation.

The REDP was prepared by the four local authorities in South West Wales in partnership with Welsh Government. In preparing the REDP, consultation took place with over 50 stakeholders from business, local authorities and Welsh Government, Universities, Further Education Colleges, leaders within the region's Enterprise Zones and local business partnerships, and the third sector.

Consultation during the preparation of the REDP included one-to-one consultations throughout the process; discussions at county-level economic partnership boards including Regeneration Swansea, the Regional Learning and Skills Partnership, and the Economic Strategy Group of the Swansea Bay City Deal; and a stakeholder consultation workshop which took place in June 2021.

The Local Economic Delivery Plan will be produced in collaboration with Regeneration Swansea - which encompasses a broad range of economic regeneration partners from the public, private and third sector in Swansea.

Q4

Have you considered the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 in the

	development of thi	s initiative:					
a)	Overall does the initiation together?	ive support our Corporate Pla	n's Well-being Objectives when considered				
	Yes ⊠	No 🗌					
b)	Does the initiative cons Yes ⊠	sider maximising contribution No	to each of the seven national well-being goals?				
c)	c) Does the initiative apply each of the five ways of working? Yes ⊠ No □						
d)	Does the initiative mee generations to meet the Yes ⊠	-	hout compromising the ability of future				
Q5			Consider the following impacts – equality, , financial, political, media, public				
	High risk	Medium risk	Low risk				
Q6	Will this initiative h	ave an impact (however	minor) on any other Council service?				
	⊠ Yes □ N	o If yes, please pro	vide details below				
	EDP will sit alongside ies undertaken by the		trategic direction for economic regeneration				
decis (You r propo- organ wheth	considering all the ions affecting simila may need to discuss this sal will affect certain grossation is making. For expense,	impacts identified withing ar groups/ service users with your Service Head or pups/ communities more advicemble, financial impact/pov	cosal on people and/or communities in the screening and any other key made by the organisation? Cabinet Member to consider more widely if this versely because of other decisions the verty, withdrawal of multiple services and labled people, older people, single parents (who				
Plan a and b comm emplo due re	and aim to create an ealance and inclusive. nunities in Swansea boyment opportunities.	economy that is resilient a It is expected that it will h y improving economic per In line with the Equality A the impact on protected g	he existing Regional Economic Delivery nd sustainable; enterprising and ambitious; ave a positive impact on people and formance and creating sustainable ct 2010 and Public Sector Equality Duty, roups in the development of the LEDP. The				

Outcome of Screening

Q8 Please describe the outcome of your screening below:

Summary of impacts identified and mitigation needed (Q2)

The impacts of the LEDP are expected to be positive and are low to medium in nature.

Summary of involvement (Q3)

The LEDP will draw on the consultation and evidence bases produced for the REDP and the 2022 Local Assessment of Wellbeing in Swansea, and will be prepared in collaboration with Regeneration Swansea partnership.

WFG considerations (Q4)

The Wellbeing of Future Generations Act was considered throughout the preparation of the REDP and this will be reflected in the LEDP. Annex B of the REDP sets out its contribution to the wellbeing goals.

Any risks identified (Q5)

The preparation of the LEDP is expected to be low risk. In delivering the actions that flow from the Plan, any risks will be considered at a project level in the normal way.

Cumulative impact (Q7)

The Local Economic Delivery Plan will complement the existing Regional Economic Delivery Plan and aim to create an economy that is resilient and sustainable; enterprising and ambitious; and balance and inclusive. It is expected that it will have a positive impact on people and communities in Swansea by improving economic performance and creating sustainable employment opportunities. In line with the Equality Act 2010 and Public Sector Equality Duty, due regard will be given to the impact on protected groups in the development of the LEDP. A full IIA will be undertaken on the plan during its development.

(NB: This summary paragraph should be used in the relevant section of corporate report)

	Full IIA to be completed
□ th	Do not complete IIA – please ensure you have provided the relevant information above to support is outcome

NB: Please email this completed form to the Access to Services Team for agreement before obtaining approval from your Head of Service. Head of Service approval is only required via email.

Screening completed by:
Name: Clare James
Job title: Economic Development Manager
Date: 20.12.22
Approval by Head of Service:
Name: Phil Holmes
Name: Phil Holmes Position: Head of Planning and City Regeneration

Please return the completed form to accesstoservices@swansea.gov.uk

Appendix B - Swansea Local Economic Delivery Plan

1.0 Introduction

- 1.1 Swansea is a city and county of contrasts, from deep rural across 60% of its geography to dense urban settings in the city centre, set in a patchwork of smaller towns/districts and villages all with their own character. The stunning natural environment includes 32 miles of coastline and over 50 beaches, the majority of which are situated within the Gower Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. The unique combination of natural environment, urban/rural mix, cultural, leisure and sporting assets and dynamic universities contribute to Swansea's distinctiveness and makes the county an attractive place to live, work or visit.
- 1.2 With a population of 237,000 and an economy that generates over £5,600million in gross value added, Swansea is a key driver of the South West Wales regional economy and one of the most substantial contributors to, and assets of, the Welsh economy.
- 1.3 Swansea is undergoing a significant transformation, with unprecedented levels of investment through the £1bn+ regeneration programme that is transforming the city's streetscape and skyline. Through projects such as the new Digital Arena & Coastal Park, 71-72 The Kingsway, redevelopment of the Palace Theatre and Albert Hall, regeneration of Hafod Morfa Copperworks and High Street the momentum is building and bringing new opportunities for people and for businesses.
- 1.4 In 2021 the four local authorities in South West Wales working with Welsh Government produced a Regional Economic Delivery Plan which set out region's economic regeneration ambitions through to 2030. The Regional Economic Delivery Plan was adopted as the Council's overarching economic regeneration policy in January 2022. The Local Economic Delivery Plan complements this and will guide the implementation of the Regional Economic Delivery Plan in a local context. It aims to create an economy that is resilient and sustainable; enterprising and ambitious; and balanced and inclusive.
- 1.5 The Local Economic Delivery Plan comprises of a strategic framework which sets out our local missions, strategic aims and objectives through to 2030, and an accompanying action plan. The action plan will be a live document that will be regularly updated by partners as new opportunities come forward and economic circumstances change. The Local Economic Delivery Plan has been produced through the Regeneration Swansea partnership, and partnership working locally, regionally and nationally will be essential to the successful delivery of the Plan.

2.0 Strategic Context

- 2.1 The Regional Economic Delivery Plan was developed in the context of a range of plans and strategies at the local, Welsh and UK level. Important themes that emerged were the need to embed the wellbeing goals and ways of working from the Well-being of Future Generations Act into the Plan, the commitment to decarbonisation and achievement of net zero by 2050, the opportunities and challenges presented by technological and demographic change, and the impacts of the UK's exit from the European Union. These have been taken forward into the Local Economic Delivery Plan and have shaped the local missions, aims and objectives.
- 2.2 The Local Economic Delivery Plan aligns with Swansea's Local Wellbeing Plan 2023 -2028 and will contribute towards the delivery of the vision and all four wellbeing objectives. The Local Wellbeing Plan has been prepared by the Swansea Public Services Board which has a vision to work together to make Swansea a place which is prosperous, where our natural environment is appreciated and sustained, and where every person can have the best start in life, get a good job, live well, age well, have access to cultural opportunities and have every opportunity to be healthy, happy, safe and the best they can be. The Wellbeing Plan focuses on the PSB's long-term objectives, which are:
 - Early Years to ensure that children have the best start in life to be the best they can be;
 - Live Well, Age Well to make Swansea a great place to live at every stage of life;
 - Climate Change and Nature Recovery to restore and enhance biodiversity, tackle the causes, and reduce the impact of climate change;
 - Strong Communities to build cohesive and resilient communities with a sense of pride and belonging.
- 2.3 In addition the Local Delivery Plan complements and links to the following local plans and strategies:
 - Climate Change and Nature Strategy 2022-2030 which sets out the Council's commitment to addressing climate change alongside its commitment to nature recovery. The Council business will strive for net zero carbon by 2030 and working with partners will call on the whole of the City and County, its major employers, its citizens, community groups and businesses to contribute to achieving net zero carbon by 2050.
 - Green Infrastructure¹ strategy Swansea Central Area: Regenerating our City for Wellbeing and Wildlife, published jointly by Swansea Council and Natural Resources Wales, is designed to bring more nature into the city centre through high quality multifunctional green infrastructure which delivers resilience, prosperity, nature, health, wellbeing and happiness to the citizens and visitors of Swansea.

¹ Green Infrastructure - commonly referred to as GI - is the term used to describe all the green space, soil, vegetation and water that provide the ecosystem services that make places more liveable. This includes, for example, streets trees, green roofs and walls, natural play spaces, wildlife / nature gardens, pollinator corridors, landscaping, drainage and air quality management solutions.

- Joint Local Transport Plan for South West Wales which has a vision to improve transport and access within and beyond the region to facilitate economic regeneration, reduce deprivation and support the development and use of more sustainable and healthier modes of transport.
- Swansea Council Corporate Plan 2023-28, which prioritises six wellbeing objectives which are:
 - Safeguarding people from harm
 - Improving Education and Skills
 - o Transforming our Economy and Infrastructure
 - o Tackling Poverty and Enabling Communities
 - o Delivering on Nature Recovery and Climate Change
 - Transformation and Financial Resilience
- 'Back on Track' Swansea Destination Management Plan 2023—26 which focuses on the following priorities:
 - Driving Quality: to build on success and further enhance the destination in order to deliver a distinctive and high-quality visitor experience.
 - Breaking free of seasonality: to develop creative, targeted marketing campaigns to enhance the area's appeal to the UK and wider world and build a stronger tourism offer outside the summer months.
 - Encouraging Sustainability: to nurture a more sustainable approach to tourism, both economically and environmentally, to the benefit of the environment and the wellbeing of all.
 - Working Partnerships: to continue to support the private sector directly and work with our public and third sector partners in order to achieve growth and prosperity for the local economy.
- Swansea Central Area Strategic Framework which provides the strategic context for the regeneration of the city centre in support of a vision to create a mixed-use location with a strong retail, commercial and leisure heart supported by a vibrant resident population.

3.0 Economic Context

- 3.1 The evidence base for developing the Local Economic Delivery Plan has been drawn from the extensive economic analysis undertaken for the preparation of the Regional Economic Delivery Plan and the 2022 Assessment of Local Wellbeing in Swansea.
- 3.2 These identify that the longer term economic challenges faced by Swansea are:
 - The need for Post-Covid support and recovery, which has been exacerbated by the economic effects of the war in Ukraine and cost of living crisis.
 - Growing the business base the relative size of the business base (523 businesses per 10,000 population) is below Wales (559) and UK (697) averages. Swansea has a healthy level of business formations but one and five year survival rates for enterprises are below the equivalent rates for

Wales and UK. The increasing costs of goods, services and energy, along with rising interest rates are creating very challenging trading conditions for local businesses.

- 98% of businesses in Swansea are either micro or small scale. The scaleup potential of these businesses is vital to the economic growth of the County as a whole. These businesses are the driver of employment growth and higher value, higher paid jobs.
- Addressing the ongoing productivity gap with rest of UK Swansea's productivity (GVA per hour worked) stood at 84.9% of the UK average in 2021. More productive activities ought to lead to higher average pay, but there will be a need to ensure that any productivity gains are captured locally in pay, conditions and business opportunities.
- Increasing wage rates In April 2022 annual median full-time earnings for Swansea jobs stood at £30,190, a rise of 5.3% over the year, which was 91.4% of the UK average.
- Supporting people to overcome barriers and move into employment or training. Latest data from the Annual Population Survey to June 2023 suggests that economic activity and employment rates in Swansea are slightly higher than Wales and UK averages. However, excluding students there are still 22,900 people of working age in Swansea who are economically inactive, with nearly half of these classified as long term sick. There are slightly more people working part time in Swansea (25.8% compared with UK average of 23.7%) and fewer people who are selfemployed (10.2% compared with 13.3% across the UK).
- At 3.5% in September 2023, the unemployment rate is between the Wales (3.2% and UK (3.7%) averages. Although there are a number of local areas where unemployment rates are considerably higher, in particular Townhill (7.5%), Castle (6..6%), Penderry (6.2%) and Landore (4.8%). Ensuring access for all to a supply of genuine pathways and opportunities is vitally important to reduce inequalities and enable people to move into employment, progress from part-time to full time employment and advance into higher paid opportunities.
- Skills Gaps Data to December 2022 shows that Swansea has a higher proportion of working age residents with qualifications to level 3 (A/AS levels, GNVQ advanced, trade apprenticeships) and above than the Wales and UK averages. However work needs to continue to upskill people so they can take advantage of opportunities in new and emerging industries, and to address the gaps in sectors such as care, hospitality and construction.
- Reducing the Household Income Gap In 2021 Gross Disposable Household Income per head in Swansea stood at £17,772 which was 82% of the UK average.

- Reducing deprivation across the county In the 2019 Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation (WIMD), Swansea had an above average proportion of its Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) featuring in the most deprived 10% in Wales, with 17 (11.5%) of its 148 LSOAs in the 191 (10%) most deprived. Creating sustainable well paid employment, with the required support available to enable people to participate and progress in the labour market, will help to address this.
- Swansea's Local Development Plan identifies a lack of available, high
 quality office space to meet inward investment and economic growth needs,
 combined with an oversupply of sub-standard office space at central and
 out of town locations. There is a viability gap for commercial property
 development so public sector investment is needed before commercial
 developers are willing to invest.
- Responding to changing consumer and workers habits by developing new uses for city centre, district and local centres. Including adapting to new ways of working including transport methods and connectivity and positive impact on places.
- Climate change and nature emergencies, the need for rapid adaptation and the achievement of the Council's Net Zero ambitions
- Responding to the digital revolution and connected future with new models of working.
- 3.3 Swansea also has a range of distinctive strengths and opportunities that the Local Economic Delivery Plan seeks to capitalise on, including:
 - Outstanding natural environment 60% of Swansea is rural and coastal location that supports a high quality of life and distinctive proposition for visitors and investors
 - National and internationally significant research and development expertise within our Universities with a strong track record of industrial collaboration
 - Pipeline of skilled labour generated through Swansea University, University of Wales Trinity Saint David and Gower College Swansea
 - Emerging strengths in green economy through, for example, the Biome biophilic mixed use development in the city centre, city centre green infrastructure strategy, Blue Eden, Swansea University Biohub.
 - Strong heritage offer linked to our industrial past, e.g. Vivian legacy, Hafod Morfa Copperworks
 - Diverse cultural offering, as showcased through previous city of culture bids
 - Growing reputation for high quality local food and drink, particularly linked to our rural areas
 - Ambitious regeneration programme to transform the city centre and Hafod Morfa Copperworks
 - Swansea Bay City Deal investment package supported by the Welsh and UK Government's to deliver nine transformational projects across the South West Wales region.

 Strong ethos of partnership working through Regeneration Swansea and more widely across the region.

4.0 Strategic Framework

- 4.1 The Regional Economic Delivery Plan was developed after detailed consultation with stakeholders in Swansea and the region. To help plan for the future it sets out three 'Ambitions' which describe the nature of the South West Wales economy that we want to work towards. These ambitions, which have also been carried forward into the Local Economic Delivery Plan, are:
 - Resilient and sustainable
 - Enterprising and ambitious
 - Balanced and inclusive
- 4.2 The ambitions in the Regional Economic Delivery Plan are supported by three complementary Missions, which will guide activity over the next ten years:
 - Mission 1 Establishing South West Wales as a UK leader in renewable energy and the development of a net zero economy: Taking forward the region's major energy related projects and driving the benefits through the region (via industrial decarbonisation, supply chain opportunities, university-linked innovation, etc.).
 - Mission 2 Building a strong, resilient and embedded business base: Understanding and growing the business stock, supporting widespread social and commercial entrepreneurship, creating stronger supply chain and innovation networks, making public sector support sustainable; driving forward technology adoption and diffusion.
 - Mission 3 Growing and sustaining the 'experience' offer: Linking environmental quality, quality of life and community character to create a region that retains and attracts talent and investment, and to promote this consistently and powerfully to the outside world
- 4.3 The Local Economic Delivery Plan takes the high-level strategic direction from the Regional Economic Delivery Plan and recasts this in a local context, to reflect the unique challenges and opportunities in Swansea. The local missions in the Local Economic Delivery Plan largely mirror those in the Regional Economic Delivery plan for consistency and are in line with the economic evidence base for Swansea.
- 4.4 The missions guide the long-term economic policy direction for Swansea. Each mission has a two pronged approached outlined as strategic aims which provide the key areas of focus. The Local Economic Delivery Plan Strategic Framework is outlined in figure 4.1.

Figure 4.1: Local Economic Delivery Plan Strategic Framework

Local Mission 1		Local N	lission 2	Local Mission 3	
Transitioning to a Net Zero Economy		Building a Strong, Resilient Business and Skills Base		Growing and Promoting Swansea's Strengths and Experience Offer	
Strategic Aim 1	Strategic Aim 2	Strategic Aim 3	Strategic Aim 4	Strategic Aim 5	Strategic Aim 6
Decarbonising the Business Base	Decarbonising the Wider Economy	Growing productivity and resilience across the economy	Creating a pipeline of skilled and talented people	Creating Connected, Sustainable Places	Strengthening our Distinctiveness
	•	Strategic	Objectives		•
benefits of climate action to businesses	2.1 Decarbonising the housing stock	3.1 Co-ordinated package of support which engages new and existing businesses	4.1 Inspiring and enabling all people to reach their potential in Swansea	5.1 Building a strong, healthy, and resilient city centre	6.1 Preserving and promoting our heritage
1.2 Decarbonising local businesses	2.2 Investing in renewable energy	3.2 Ensuring access to fit for purpose sites and premises	4.2 Responding to current and future skills needs	5.2 Creating flourishing. accessible district and local centres	6.2 Celebrating our unique arts and cultural offer
1.3 Creating local supply chains	2.3 Developing a more circular economy	3.3 Actively promoting Swansea as a place to invest, work, study and do business	4.3 Creating pathways to enter and progress in employment	5.3 Investing sustainably for a more resilient and greener future	6.3 Promoting Swansea as a green, wellbeing city
1.4 Harnessing low carbon technology/ industries	2.4 Supporting decarbonised transport solutions	3.4 Maximising the positive impact of large and small organisations on local communities and foundational economy	4.4 Growing and retaining highly skilled young people	5.4 Exploiting the benefits of digital infrastructure	6.4 Investing in the 'experience' economy
	2.5 Enabling green infrastructure	3.5 Fostering innova	ntion and knowledge n local businesses, Colleges		6.5 Making the economy work for everyone
Cross Cutting themes					
Working in Partnership – locally, regionally and nationally Promoting our successes					

Local Mission 1: Transitioning to a Net Zero Economy

4.5 Both UK and Welsh Government have committed to achieving net zero by 2050. If met, this would mean the amount of greenhouse gas emissions produced by the UK would be equal to or less than the emissions removed by the UK from the environment. Locally, Swansea Council is aiming for the whole county to be net zero by 2050. As outlined in the Swansea Climate Change and Nature Strategy 2022-2030 there will be a need for collective leadership and shared ambition by the Council, partners, major employers, citizens, community groups and businesses to enable us to achieve this.

4.6 It is important that we drive forward action through the Local Economic Delivery Plan to enable our local businesses and the wider economy to adapt and take positive action to move us towards a more sustainable, lower carbon economy. The first two strategic aims have been developed to address:-

Strategic Aim 1: Decarbonising the Business Base

- 4.7 Decarbonising our business base will be essential for Swansea to become net zero by 2050 and will bring positive environmental and economic benefits for business. Engagement with local businesses has highlighted a gap in knowledge on how to move towards net zero. We will support our local businesses to become more sustainable and reduce their carbon footprint by:
 - Objective 1.1: Promoting the benefits of climate action to businesses: Improving businesses understanding of the actions they can take to move towards a lower carbon future, and the additional benefits this can bring in terms of cost savings, enhanced reputation, competitive advantage and resilience to future climate change impacts.
 - Objective 1.2: Decarbonising local businesses
 Encouraging energy efficiency measures and a switch to renewable energy sources in business premises and processes to reduce carbon emissions.
 - Objective 1.3: Creating local supply chains
 Encouraging more local purchasing by businesses and organisations will reduce carbon emissions associated with transportation. It will also have a positive impact on local businesses and communities by supporting local jobs, creating more resilient supply chains, embedding businesses in local communities and enhancing local identity.
 - Objective 1.4: Harnessing low carbon technology/ industries
 Working closely with universities and industry leaders to highlight best
 practice and encourage adoption of low carbon technology by businesses.
 Linked with actions to promote Swansea as an investment location we will
 highlight our potential as the ideal location for new green/low carbon
 industries building on our university expertise, skills base and physical
 assets.

Strategic Aim 2: Decarbonising the Wider Economy

4.8 Decarbonisation extends beyond the business base, it also impacts on housing and transport. Pobl is undertaking one of the UK's largest community-based retrofit, energy generation and smart energy projects in Penderry. A programme to improve the energy efficiency of the Council's housing stock through installation of solar panels/air source heat pumps and external wall insulation is continuing across the county, and new Council housing stock is being built to the 'Swansea standard' which minimises the energy needed to heat a home, reducing running costs and carbon emissions. Projects such as Blue Eden, with

its energy generation and hydrogen hub are positioning Swansea as a renewable energy city. We will work to decarbonise the wider economy by:

Objective 2.1: Decarbonising the housing stock

Encouraging energy efficiency measures and adoption of renewable energy technologies in new and existing homes.

Objective 2.2: Investing in renewable energy

Working with Welsh and UK Governments and the private sector to progress nationally significant schemes such as Blue Eden Swansea Renewable Energy & Port Development, as well as supporting smaller scale and community-based renewable energy solutions.

Objective 2.3: Developing a more circular economy

There are opportunities to increase re-use of goods and materials across the economy, including potential for community-based solutions to increase repair and re-use of equipment, use of new technology to enable re-use of materials, and reductions in food waste.

Objective 2.4: Supporting decarbonised transport solutions

Continued development of a more sustainable, integrated transport network encompassing rail, bus and active travel modes.

Objective 2.5: Enabling green infrastructure

Swansea has a growing reputation for green infrastructure with the City Centre Green Infrastructure Strategy providing a framework for this. Increasing the extent and quality of green infrastructure in the city centre and across the county, will make it better adapted to climate change and a better place for people and wildlife.

Local Mission 2: Building a Strong, Resilient Business and Skills Base

- 4.9 Business is at the centre of our strategy to 2030: it will be through the expansion of existing firms and the start-up and attraction of new ones that new employment will be generated and productivity growth secured. That means supporting sustainable business growth both at the 'leading edge' and across the wider economy.
- 4.10 A strong skills base will be essential to support growth of existing businesses and attraction of new firms to Swansea. Additionally, to help tackle inequality, poverty and deprivation across the county, we need to ensure that all those who wish to work have the opportunity and skills to participate and progress in the labour market.

Strategic Aim 3: Growing productivity and resilience across the economy

- 4.11 'Transformational' growth opportunities need to be balanced with the conditions for incremental improvements in resilience, capacity and capability across the whole of economy. There are distinctive opportunities at the 'leading edge' linked to the expertise within Swansea University and University of Wales Trinity Saint David but long-term employment resilience and wage growth will depend on the sustainability, productivity and expansion of the wider stock of SMEs in Swansea. We will do this by:
 - Objective 3.1: Creating and promoting a co-ordinated package of support which engages new and existing businesses.

A comprehensive package of business support is needed to drive business start-up rates and entrepreneurship, improve retention and growth of existing businesses as well as increasing the resilience and adaptability to change across our SME base - encompassing all types of business including social enterprises and employee-owned businesses. However, it is not enough to have this package of support in place, business need to also be aware of what's on offer to support them and know how to access it, so there also needs to be a focus on marketing and engaging business in a variety of ways. It will be important to facilitate opportunities for business to engage and learn from each other and improve understanding on how to navigate the regulatory framework, e.g planning.

- Objective 3.2: Ensuring access to fit for purpose sites and premises
 Evidence shows there is a viability gap in the delivery of commercial
 property which impacts on the availability of modern, fit for purpose
 commercial premises, particularly in Swansea city centre. Working with
 Welsh and UK Governments and the private sector we will seek to bring
 forward a pipeline of new and refurbished commercial floorspace at a range
 of appropriate scales and locations to accommodate start-ups, growing
 businesses and inward investors.
- Objective 3.3: Actively promoting Swansea as a place to invest, work, study and do business

We will work collaboratively at local, regional and national level to highlight the unique offer Swansea has linked to assets outlined in mission 3 including quality of life, natural environment and culture to attract new investment, businesses, students and skilled workforce. We will reinforce Swansea's reputation as a great place to start-up or grow a business.

Objective 3.4: Maximising the positive impact of large and small organisations on local communities and foundational economy. There has been a recent focus on the role public sector procurement can play in supporting economic growth, and we have a long established Beyond Bricks and Mortar community benefits policy in Swansea which exemplifies this. The Beyond Bricks and Mortar team facilitate meet the buyer events with Council contractors to maximise local supply chain opportunities, enable educational opportunities and secure targeted recruitment and training for local economically inactive and unemployed

people. We will encourage businesses and all types of organisations to be good corporate citizens and maximise their positive impact on their employees, local community and foundational economy. Not only by encouraging large and small organisations to purchase goods and services locally, but also for example by offering the living wage, engaging in community, education, employment and training initiatives, and supporting employees' wellbeing.

• Objective 3.5: Fostering innovation and knowledge transfer between local businesses, Universities and Colleges

Our universities and college are key economic assets for the city and county and have a long track record of working closely with industry. We will work in collaboration to facilitate access for local businesses to the cutting-edge facilities, world class research and development expertise and highly skilled graduates to drive innovation, productivity and growth.

Strategic Aim 4: Creating a pipeline of skilled and talented people

- 4.12 We cannot grow our business base without a skilled and talented pool of labour. We need to address current skills gaps in Swansea and ensure we are developing the right skills for future growth opportunities, such as renewable energy, green industries and digital.
- 4.13 We want to create a labour market that everyone has the means to participate in and take advantage of the current and future employment opportunities available. Being in employment is good for physical and mental health and wellbeing, can increase living standards and move people out of poverty. It is vitally important that support is available for those with barriers to employment, and that there are pathways for ongoing training and skills development so that people are able to progress into higher skilled, higher paid employment.
- 4.14 We will deliver this strategic aim by:

Objective 4.1: Inspiring and enabling all people to reach their potential in Swansea

Everyone has a role to play in the economy. We want Swansea to be a place where all people can reach their full potential, irrespective of their background or circumstances, in whatever path they choose to take – education, training, employment or starting their own business. We want to inspire and motivate people to take up opportunities as well as providing them with the resources (eg skills, transport, confidence) needed to participate in the local labour market. The economy is experiencing skills shortages in a number of areas such as health and construction and it is important to encourage people to train in these areas.

• Objective 4.2: Responding to current and future skills needs Extensive work is undertaken by the Regional Learning and Skills

Partnership to map current and future skills needs in Swansea and the wider region, as outlined in the Regional Skills and Employment Plan. We

will work collaboratively through the RLSP to ensure our skills provision meets the current and future needs of the economy, and we are equipping people with the skills and expertise needed by employers.

Objective 4.3: Creating pathways to enter and progress in employment

Unemployed and economically inactive people face a range of complex barriers which prevent them accessing skills and employment opportunities. These can include physical and mental health issues, lack of transport, childcare, low confidence or lack of relevant skills. In particular, we need to focus on those who are under-represented in the labour market and face disadvantage and inequity in accessing work, including disabled people, lone parents, over 50s and Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic people. We will take a multi-agency approach to provide person centred employability support to enable individuals to overcome their barriers and move into sustained employment.

• Objective 4.4: Growing and retaining highly skilled young people

Our schools, colleges and universities are generating a pool of highly skilled young people and we want to ensure they can access employment opportunities, or a supportive environment to start their own businesses, so that they choose to remain in Swansea, or return in later years. Central to this is ensuring they fully understand the different learning pathways and career opportunities that are available to them in Swansea, now and in the future. There is a role to play in ensuring that young people are exposed to a greater range of career options throughout their schooling. This can be done by collaborating with industry and formulating a range of options for businesses to help promote their areas of work within schools; industry working with colleges and universities to offer alternatives to standard academic routes and seek out potential students through more creative recruitment which inspires their desire to join that industry. Also showcasing areas of skill shortage within schools and colleges and offering taster sessions, work experience etc to encourage young people to train in these areas.

<u>Local Mission 3: Growing and Promoting Swansea's Strengths and Experience Offer</u>

4.15 Swansea is a county of contrasts, from deep rural across 60% of its geography to dense urban settings in the City Centre, set in a patchwork of smaller towns/districts and villages all with their own character. The Gower Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB), the first AONB in the UK forms the western flank, surrounded by stunning coastline which links along the city waterfront through to the beautiful hilly settings of Mawr to the north. Along with our extensive heritage, arts and cultural strengths, this gives Swansea a unique offer to attract visitors and investment, and also forms part of the wellbeing offer for residents.

Strategic Aim 5: Creating Connected, Sustainable Places

- 4.16 Swansea city centre and our network of towns and villages are central to our identity and distinctiveness. They provide important regional/local service functions with access to employment, leisure, community and cultural facilities at their core. This mix of activities brings vibrancy to these communities and creates opportunities to draw people together, broadening and deepening community links. The appeal of Swansea as a place to live, work and visit is intrinsically connected with the attractiveness and vibrancy of our city centre, towns and villages.
- 4.17 We will create connected, sustainable places by:
 - Objective 5.1: Building a strong, healthy, and resilient city centre
 The city centre is a key economic driver for Swansea and the wider region.
 An ambitious regeneration programme is currently underway which has led
 to the construction of the new Digital Arena and is creating a revitalised
 retail and leisure destination, new commercial floorspace and opportunities
 for more city living. We will continue to work in partnership with the Welsh
 and UK Governments to deliver the city centre regeneration programme,
 capitalising on its unique waterfront location, to drive footfall, economic
 growth and employment.

Objective 5.2: Creating flourishing, accessible district and local centres

Building on the work already started through the Welsh Government Transforming Towns programme, there is a continued need to invest in our towns and villages to create sustainable places where people want to live, shop locally, work, learn and play. Improving accessibility through well connected active travel routes, bringing new uses to vacant premises and enhancing the physical environment through small scale public realm improvements and greening are all aspects of that. Part of this is also about enabling local entrepreneurship in all its senses to flourish from a strong base of community and voluntary activity to new microbusinesses, many of whom are beginning to breathe new life into ailing high streets. Opportunities also exist for co-working spaces on local high streets to provide an alternative to the increase in home working resulting from the covid pandemic.

Objective 5.3: Investing sustainably for a more resilient and greener future

We need to ensure our regeneration activities are contributing to the requirement to decarbonise our economy by 2050 as outlined in Mission 1, and that our buildings are carbon neutral, resilient to climate change, promote biodiversity and maximise the potential for green infrastructure. There is also a need to consider future climate risks, such as flooding in Swansea Bay and Tawe Riverside corridor, and pursue interventions that would help to adapt or mitigate against these to protect existing communities and businesses.

• Objective 5.4: Exploiting the benefits of digital infrastructure

Working across and throughout all missions to ensure digital is used as an enabler for change and improvement, including support in reaching net zero and to drive business growth, innovation and productivity both in the private and public sector. Building on the Swansea Bay City Deal digital infrastructure programme we need to harness the power of digital technology in local communities to connect businesses and people, and to ensure people have the necessary skills to take advantage of digital opportunities to improve their economic wellbeing.

Strategic Aim 6: Strengthening Our Distinctiveness

4.18 Swansea has a unique combination of assets – natural environment, sport and leisure opportunities, urban/rural mix, unique culture and extensive industrial heritage – that are central to Swansea's distinctiveness and makes the county an attractive place to live, work or visit. This aim will strengthen and promote our distinctiveness by:

• Objective 6.1: Preserving and promoting our heritage

Swansea has a rich industrial heritage which includes Hafod Copperworks, former site of the world's largest copperworks, which is now being revitalised to create a unique visitor destination. Many of our larger towns were largely born of the legacy of the industrial revolution as dormitory zones for the major metal and mining industries across the county, and they have unique structures and features that contribute to the local character in each place. Attention is now turning to telling the story of these places for local communities and visitors, to foster local and civic pride and as a means of driving footfall to support local businesses. We will capitalise on heritage-led regeneration opportunities for the development of the visitor economy including a community focus to enable heritage groups to play an integral part in the regeneration of future of heritage assets and sites alongside other key partners.

• Objective 6.2: Celebrating our unique arts and cultural offer

Swansea has a diverse arts and cultural offering, encompassing high profile attractions such as the Glynn Vivian Art Gallery, National Waterfront Museum and Swansea International Jazz Festival alongside vibrant community-based activities that showcase our Welsh and multicultural identity. We aim to reinforce and celebrate our unique arts and cultural offer to increase participation and attract visitors, to support community wellbeing and the visitor economy.

• Objective 6.3: Promoting Swansea as a green, wellbeing city

Capitalising on our unique assets of location, culture, quality of life and natural environment coupled with our focus on decarbonisation and renewable energy, we will position Swansea as a green, wellbeing city, focused on sustainable growth that has a positive impact on the wellbeing of our citizens, and attracts businesses and inward investors that share our vision.

Objective 6.4: Investing in the 'experience' economy –

Tourism is a key sector in Swansea with visitor numbers increasing to over 4.2m in 2022 and generating over £510m of spend in the local economy. Our stunning natural environment and the range of experiences this sustains is at the heart of our quality of life proposition and of central importance to our tourism offer. We have a growing network of local food and drink producers, particularly in our rural areas, that are putting Swansea on the map as a food destination and contributing to that unique visitor experience. We will work collaboratively with businesses to improve the quality, breadth and sustainability of the experience offer for both residents and visitors alike.

Objective 6.5: Making the economy work for everyone

Not all parts of our county benefit from the excellent quality of life that Swansea has to offer with issues of poverty, deprivation and inequality in parts of the county and deteriorating housing affordability. We want our actions and ways of working to be positive and inclusive so that our economic regeneration activities are accessible to and benefit all individuals and communities in Swansea.

Cross cutting themes

Working in Partnership – locally, regionally and nationally

4.19 Successful delivery of the Local Economic Delivery Plan will only be achieved through partnership working between public, private and voluntary sector partners in Swansea, the wider region and nationally to ensure we are all pulling in the same direction and maximising the impact of our resources. We will build on our existing partnership arrangements and foster a 'Team Swansea' approach for delivery of our regeneration actions.

Promoting our successes

4.20 We have a strong track record in Swansea of delivering on our regeneration actions but we are not always as good at promoting our successes. We will make this an integral part of delivering the Local Economic Delivery Plan to showcase our achievements locally, regionally and nationally to build momentum and a sense of pride.

5.0 Action Plan

5.1 An action plan will accompany the strategic framework to outline the key actions we will be taking to deliver the strategic aims and objectives in the Local Economic Delivery Plan. Economic circumstances and the policy context are forever changing so the action plan will be a 'live' working document that will be regularly reviewed by partners. This will enable new actions to come forward where opportunities arise and for actions to be updated as projects progress.

6.0 Governance and Monitoring

- 6.1 The Local Economic Delivery Plan has been produced through the Regeneration Swansea Partnership. The Partnership brings together key public, private and third sector organisations involved in economic regeneration in Swansea including Swansea University, University of Wales Trinity Saint David, Gower College Swansea, Coastal Housing, Pobl, Caredig, Swansea Council for Voluntary Services, Department for Work & Pensions, Swansea Bay University Health Board, Swansea Business Improvement District, 4theRegion, Urban Foundry, Indycube, Tramshed Tech, Welsh Government and UK Government.
- 6.2 Regeneration Swansea will be responsible for ongoing review and monitoring of the action plan on a regular basis. As part of this performance measures will be developed to monitor progress against the actions.

Swansea Local Delivery Plan - Action Plan Version 1, December 2023

This action plan sets out the key actions that will be taken to deliver the aims and objectives of the Swansea Local Economic Delivery Plan, as set out below:

Local Mission 1		Local N	lission 2 Local Mission		lission 3	
Transitioning to a Net Zero Economy		Building a Strong, Resilient Business and Skills Base		Growing and Promoting Swansea's Strengths and Experience Offer		
Strategic Aim 1	Strategic Aim 2	Strategic Aim 3 Strategic Aim 4		Strategic Aim 5	Strategic Aim 6	
Decarbonising the Business Base	Decarbonising the Wider Economy	Growing productivity and resilience across the economy	Creating a pipeline of skilled and talented people	Creating Connected, Sustainable Places	Strengthening our Distinctiveness	
	•	Strategic	Objectives			
1.1 Promoting the benefits of climate action to businesses	2.1 Decarbonising the housing stock	3.1 Co-ordinated package of support which engages new and existing businesses	4.1 Inspiring and enabling all people to reach their potential in Swansea	5.1 Building a strong, healthy, and resilient city centre	6.1 Preserving and promoting our heritage	
1.2 Decarbonising local businesses	2.2 Investing in renewable energy	3.2 Ensuring access to fit for purpose sites and premises	4.2 Responding to current and future skills needs	5.2 Creating flourishing. accessible district and local centres	6.2 Celebrating our unique arts and cultural offer	
1.3 Creating local supply chains	2.3 Developing a more circular economy	3.3 Actively promoting Swansea as a place to invest, work, study and do business	4.3 Creating pathways to enter and progress in employment	5.3 Investing sustainably for a more resilient and greener future	6.3 Promoting Swansea as a green, wellbeing city	
1.4 Harnessing low carbon technology/ industries	2.4 Supporting decarbonised transport solutions	3.4 Maximising the positive impact of large and small organisations on local communities and foundational economy	4.4 Growing and retaining highly skilled young people	5.4 Exploiting the benefits of digital infrastructure	6.4 Investing in the 'experience' economy	
	2.5 Enabling green infrastructure	3.5 Fostering innova	ation and knowledge n local businesses, l Colleges		6.5 Making the economy work for everyone	
	Cross Cutting themes					
	Working in Partnership – locally, regionally and nationally Promoting our successes					

The action plan is a live document that will evolve as economic circumstances change and/ or new opportunities present themselves. It contains both actions that are already underway or planned and more aspirational actions that would help achieve the aims and objectives. Actions are listed under their primary strategic aim, but in reality the majority of actions will deliver against multiple objectives - the links are highlighted alongside the actions. Specific actions have not been identified for the cross cutting themes as these are fundamental to the way we deliver all the actions within the Plan.

As the action plan develops it will include timescales, named partners responsible for delivering the action, funding sources and progress. The action plan will be regularly reviewed and updated by Regeneration Swansea.

Action	Links to Objectives
Local Mission 1: Transitioning to a Net Zero Economy	
Strategic Aim 1: Decarbonising the Business Base	
Develop and promote Net Zero information pack and case studies for businesses	1.1,1.2
Delivery of Towards Net Zero training course for local businesses and organisations	1.1,1.2
Explore options for introducing a Net Zero accreditation scheme for businesses	1.1,1.2
Provision of Business Carbon Reduction Grant	1.2,1.4
Deliver Business Swansea supplier development programme to build the local supply chain	1.3, 3.1, 3.4
Promote Shop Local and the online directory itslocalSwansea to increase local purchasing	1.3, 3.4, 5.2
Delivery of Swansea Food Partnership work programme to increase awareness, use and supply of local food	1.3, 6.4
Work with the Universities to raise awareness and uptake of low carbon technologies amongst local businesses	1.2, 1.4, 3.5
Promote green energy/ green industries related training opportunities	1.4, 4.2
Explore potential for a Green Lab that would provide a practical facility for developing innovative products and processes within the city	1.4, 3.5, 5.3
Strategic Aim 2: Decarbonising the Wider Economy	
Explore funding options for retrofit of housing to achieve net zero	2.1, 2.2, 5.3
Progress Blue Eden Swansea Renewable Energy & Port Development	2.2, 5.3
Maximise opportunities from the Celtic Freeport	1.4, 1.3, 4.2
Deliver community led renewable energy schemes through SPF Rural Anchor funding	2.2, 5.3

Action	Links to Objectives
Promote a circular economy	2.3, 1.2
Develop Community led solutions for decarbonised community transport and active travel	2.4, 5.2
Explore options for decarbonised transport e.g. hydrogen buses	2.4, 5.3
Promotion and delivery of Green Infrastructure schemes in line with City Centre Green Infrastructure Strategy	2.5, 5.3, 6.3
Local Mission 2: Building a Strong, Resilient, Business and Skills Base	
Strategic Aim 3: Growing productivity and resilience across the economy	
Support start-ups and existing businesses through the Business Swansea programme of business grants and support	3.1, 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 2.2, 3.4, 3.5, 4.1, 5.4
Research key sectors within the local economy to identify growth opportunities	3.3
Work with Welsh and UK Governments to ensure supply of fit for purpose commercial floorspace in Swansea	3.2, 5.1, 5.2, 5.3
Develop joint prospectus to promote Swansea to a national and international audience	3.3, 6.3, 1.4
Work in partnership with Welsh and UK Governments and Western Gateway to promote Swansea internationally	
Develop a series of case studies and good news content for sharing with a local and national audience to promote Swansea as a place to do business	3.3, 3.1
Support businesses and organisations to become good corporate citizens by for example:-	3.4, 1.3, 6.5
Encouraging employers to pay the real living wage/ link with real living wage foundation	
Encouraging development of BCorps	
Local sourcing	
Maximise the impact of community benefits through Beyond Bricks and Mortar	3.4, 6.5

Action	Links to Objectives
Consider ways of working in key anchor organisations to maximise their positive impact on the local economy	3.4, 6.5, 1.3, 4.3
Foster R&D collaboration between businesses, academia, funding and community networks	3.5, 1.4
Introduce new Shared Prosperity Fund Business Swansea Innovation Grant for small and medium sized enterprises to encourage product and process innovation	3.5, 3.1
Progress Swansea University Natural Products Biohub	3.5, 5.3, 6.3
Maximise opportunities to attract Innovate UK funding to support business innovation	3.5, 3.1, 1.4
Strategic Aim 4: Creating a pipeline of skilled and talented people	
Work in partnership with education and business to inspire and connect young people with opportunities available in the world of work	4.1, 4.4, 6.5
Deliver Introduction to Self Employment courses to promote enterprise/ self-employment	4.1
Work with Regional Learning & Skills Partnership to identify current and future skills needs and match with skills supply	4.2
Address the skills needs of local employers through the SPF Skills for Swansea project	4.2, 4.3
Provide tailored support to enable individuals to access employment and training opportunities through the SPF Pathways to Work Employability Anchor project	4.3, 6.5
Improve numeracy skill levels through the SPF Multiply Swansea programme	4.1, 4.3
Local Mission 3: Growing and Promoting Swansea's Strengths and Experience Offer	
Strategic Aim 5: Creating Connected, Sustainable Places	
Work in partnership with Welsh and UK Governments to deliver the City Centre regeneration programme and strategic partnership with Urban Splash	5.1, 3.2, 5.3, 6.4
Continued regeneration of High Street	5.1, 6.1, 6.5

Action	Links to Objectives
Delivery of Meanwhile Spaces programme to revitalise vacant commercial buildings in city centre and district centres	5.1, 5.2, 3.1
Work in partnership with Welsh Government through the Transforming Towns Programme to invest in the regeneration of city centre and district centres	5.1, 5.2, 2.5, 3.2, 6.5
Preparation of Placemaking Plans for city and district centres	5.1, 5.2
Delivery of SPF Transforming County Anchor Project to support regeneration in district and local centres	5.2, 2.5, 6.1, 6.4
Investment in transport infrastructure in city/district centres and connecting routes to promote walking/ cycling	5.1, 5.2, 2.4
Raising awareness of the impact of business rates on high streets	5.1, 5.2
To explore funding opportunities for managing the risks of climate change related to flood risk	5.1, 5.3, 3.2
Facilitating exemplar net zero regeneration schemes that showcase best practice	5.3, 2.5
Installation of wireless access points (footfall counters) in district centres	5.4, 5.2
Utilise digital technology to connect businesses and people	5.4, 5.2
Strategic Aim 6: Strengthening our Distinctiveness	
Support regeneration of historic structures	6.1, 6.4
Continue regeneration of Hafod Morfa Copperworks and Tawe Riverside Corridor (including Lower Swansea Valley Levelling Up Fund Project)	6.1, 6.4, 5.1
Interpretation and promotion of our heritage	6.1, 5.2, 6.4
Delivery of SPF Culture & Tourism Anchor project	6.2, 6.4
Facilitate delivery of new hotels in line with 2023 Hotel Demand study	6.4
Delivery of Tourism Destination Management Plan	6.4, 6.3, 6.1, 6.2
Delivery of high profile events programme for residents and visitors	6.4, 6.2, 6.1

Action	Links to Objectives
Support development of rural communities through the SPF Rural Anchor project	5.2, 6.5
Facilitate supply of affordable housing, including options for mixed tenure	6.5, 5.1, 5.2

Agenda Item 5



Report of the Chair

Economy & Infrastructure Service Transformation Committee - 14 December 2023

Work Plan 2023-2024

Date of Meeting	Agenda Item(s) & Format	Lead Officer
8 June 2023	Work Plan Discussion	
20 July 2023	Local Economic Delivery Plan Strategic Framework.	Paul Relf/Clare James
	Swansea Bay Strategy Status Report	Kristy Tillman
21 Sept 2023	Destination Management Plan.	Steve Hopkins
2 Nov 2023	Swansea Bay Strategy Projects.	Geoff Bacon
14 Dec 2023	Local Economic Delivery Plan Strategic Framework.	Paul Relf/Clare James
18 Jan 2024	Maintenance of Road Infrastructure.	Stuart Davies
29 Feb 2024	More Homes Delivery Programme.	Carol Morgan
11 April 2024	Tawe Riverside Corridor Action Plan.	Gail Evans/Paul Relf

To be Scheduled:

Review of the Council's Housing Allocation Policy. (Carol Morgan)